
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tuesday 12th January 2021 at 4pm 

 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO REMOTE MEETINGS 
 

During the Covid 19 pandemic virtual meetings are taking place. 
 
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen to proceedings at 
this virtual meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the Council website at 
least 24hrs before the meeting. 
 
To view live paste this link into your browser: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 
 
Members of the press and public may tweet, blog etc. during the live broadcast, as 
they would be able to during a regular Committee meeting in the Council Offices. 
It is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take decisions without 
disruption, so the only participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors 
concerned and the officers advising the Committee. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

CPH Resources Decision 
Session  

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ


Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors R Sleigh OBE, A Adeyemo and 
A Hodgson 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
Contact: Joe Suffield 
Tel: 0121 704 6104 
Email: joe.suffield@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date Tuesday 22nd December 2020 
 

 
CPH RESOURCES DECISION SESSION - Tuesday 12 January 2021 

 
AGENDA 

 
Mayor/Chairman of the meeting to announce: 
 
‘May I remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live via the 

internet.’ 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  
 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY OR CONFLICTING INTEREST FROM 
MEMBERS  
 

To receive declarations of interest from Members in accordance with the Code 
of Conduct (Members are directed to the guidance sheet attached) 

 
3.  QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS  

 
4.  COUNCIL TAX BASE 2021/22 (Pages 5 - 10) 

 

The purpose of this report is to recommend a council tax base for Solihull and 
parish areas within Solihull for the financial year 2021/22. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: 12 January 2021 

 

Report to: Cabinet Member for Resources 

Subject/report 
title: 

Council Tax Base 2021/22 

Report from: The Director of Resources and Deputy Chief Executive 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Amy Wileman – Accountant  

awileman@solihull.gov.uk 0121 704 8014 

 

 
Wards affected:  

☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph: 

      

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to recommend a council tax base for Solihull and parish 
areas within Solihull for the financial year 2021/22.  

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 To approve the assumed collection rate of 98.81% as explained in paragraph 4.6. 

2.2 To approve the council tax base for Solihull and the parish areas within Solihull for the 
year 2021/22 as shown in the table in paragraph 4.9. 

2.3 To approve the award of grant funding totalling £19,000 to those parish councils which 
have experienced an increase in the number of dwellings in receipt of council tax 
support, as outlined in paragraph 4.10. 

3. Matters for Consideration  

3.1 The council tax base represents the estimated number of houses eligible to pay 
council tax (“chargeable dwellings”) in the borough, expressed as a number of Band D 
equivalent properties.  

3.2 The number of chargeable dwellings takes into account households where none of the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 
 

occupants are required to pay council tax (e.g. those occupied only by students) and 
those where the occupants are entitled to discounts/reduced bills, for example 
because they live alone or because they receive support under the council tax 
reduction scheme. It is then converted to a number of Band D equivalent properties to 
represent the Council’s tax base, which is adjusted to take account of the estimated 
collection rate. Once approved, the net tax base is built into the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) and determines the level of council tax funding 
available to the Council over this period. 

3.3 The tax base must be calculated in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation 
of Council Tax Base) Regulations 2012 and must be determined between 1 December 
and 31 January for the following financial year. 

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 For 2021/22, the total tax base is derived by taking the Council’s valuation list issued 
by the Valuation Office Agency as at 30 November 2020. This is then adjusted for the 
effect of discounts, exemptions and premiums as at the same date and any new 
properties that have been built but have not yet been assessed by the Valuation Office 
Agency.  

4.2 The tax base is also reduced to reflect households in receipt of council tax reduction 
(CTR) as at 30 November 2020, which are treated in the tax base as partly or wholly 
exempt from council tax. This has reduced the gross tax base by 7,693 Band D 
equivalent dwellings (7,057 in 2020/21). This reflects the increase in the working age 
CTR caseload seen as a result of Covid-19, as reported to Cabinet in November.  

4.3 The above calculation results in a gross tax base for 2021/22 of 78,120 Band D 
equivalent dwellings (compared to a gross tax base of 78,500 Band D equivalent 
dwellings in 2020/21). 

4.4 The Council’s performance on council tax collection has consistently been in the 
region of 99% since 1997/98, when taking into account income collected after the year 
end. 

4.5 A collection rate of 98.81% was assumed in both 2019/20 and 2020/21, based on 
combined collection rates of 80% for the element of the tax base relating to the council 
tax reduction scheme and 99% for the remainder of the tax base. The collection rate 
for 2019/20 as at 30 November 2020 is 98.62%, which is slightly below the assumed 
level, partly as a result of the Council’s decision not to issue any payment reminder 
notices from March 2020 to July 2020.  

4.6 If the final collection rate was lower than the assumed level, this would result in a 
deficit that would need to be funded in the MTFS. However, if this was due to the 
impact of Covid-19, the government may make funding available to cover this, or 
alternatively, this could be funded from the Budget Strategy Reserve. It is therefore 
recommended that the assumed collection rate be maintained at 98.81% for 2021/22. 

4.7 The gross tax base multiplied by the collection rate of 98.81% gives a net council tax 
base for 2021/22 for Solihull of 77,190 Band D equivalent dwellings, compared with 

Page 6



 

 
 

77,566 Band D equivalent dwellings in the current year, a decrease of 376 Band D 
equivalent dwellings.  

4.8 This decrease is due to a number of factors: 

 An increase in the anticipated numbers of dwellings in receipt of council tax 
reduction, resulting in a decrease in the tax base of 636 Band D equivalents; 

 An increase in the total number of chargeable dwellings in the borough of 233 
Band D equivalents; 

 An increase in the empty homes premium which has increased the tax base by 
27 Band D equivalents. This includes the increase from a 200% premium to a 
300% premium for properties empty for ten years or more. This is in line with 
the Council’s Empty Property Premium Policy, which was approved by Full 
Council on 28 February 2019; 

4.9 The council tax base for Solihull and parish areas for 2021/22 calculated in 
accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 
2012 is summarised below: 

  

Number of 
Band D 

equivalent 
dwellings 

Solihull (whole area) 77,190 

of which the council tax base for specific parish areas is:  

Balsall 2,840 

Barston 295 

Berkswell 1,533 

Bickenhill and Marston Green 2,454 

Castle Bromwich 3,872 

Chadwick End 343 

Chelmsley Wood 2,832 

Cheswick Green 1,295 

Dickens Heath 2,214 

Fordbridge 1,778 

Hampton-in-Arden 1,386 

Hockley Heath 806 

Kingshurst 1,963 

Meriden 1,261 

Smith’s Wood 2,170 

Tidbury Green 741 

 

4.10 The increase in the number of dwellings in receipt of council tax reduction referred to 
in paragraph 4.8 above has reduced the tax base for a number of parishes, 
particularly those in the north of the borough. At the Spending Review in November 
2020, the government confirmed its intention to provide funding to local authorities to 
mitigate irrecoverable council tax losses, which it is anticipated will include an element 

Page 7



 

 
 

relating to parish councils’ share of these losses. It is therefore proposed to set aside 
part of the funding received to provide a grant to compensate parish councils for the 
increase in the council tax reduction scheme caseload, at a cost of £19,000. 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option 

5.1 The Council has a statutory obligation to set the council tax base in accordance with 
legislation, as detailed in paragraph 3.3.  

6. Implications and Considerations 

6.1 How the proposals in this report contribute to the delivery of Council Plan priorities: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising 
the opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

The calculation of the tax base reflects the increase 
in housing since December 2019. 

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural 
environment. 

5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon 

emissions. 

None 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life 
chances in our most 
disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

None 

6.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

6.2.1 Not applicable, as it is a statutory requirement to set the council tax base according to 
the legislation detailed in paragraph 3.3.  

6.3 Financial implications: 

6.3.1 The council tax base will be used in determining the council tax for Solihull and 
precepting bodies in 2021/22. An authority’s council tax requirement is calculated as 

Page 8



 

 
 

its budgeted spend, less other funding sources, and this figure is divided by the tax 
base to produce the council tax charge at Band D. 

6.3.2 The net tax base of 77,190 represents a decrease of 1,358 Band D equivalent 
properties compared to the tax base originally assumed in the approved MTFS for 
2021/22 of 78,548. Based on the assumed council tax increase of 2.99% in the 
approved MTFS, this represents a pressure of £1.973 million which will be built into 
the updated MTFS. An assumed pressure of £1.969 million has already been taken 
into account through the budget process and is reflected in the draft budget proposals 
being reported to scrutiny boards in January 2021.  

6.3.3 As outlined at paragraph 4.10 above, it is recommended that the Council award a 
grant to those parish councils which have experienced an increase in the number of 
dwellings anticipated to receive local council tax support. The cost of £19,000 will be 
funded from government grant. 

6.4 Legal implications: 

6.4.1 None, as the calculation of the tax base is as required by the relevant legislation, 
detailed in paragraph 3.3.  

6.5 Risk implications: 

6.5.1 As detailed in paragraphs 3.1 and 3.2, the council tax base underpins the level of 
council tax funding that is built into the council’s MTFS. If the council tax base is set 
too high, then there is a risk that the amount of council tax collected is less than that 
assumed for funding purposes, which would lead to a deficit on the Collection Fund. 
Any deficit would have to be funded in the update of the Council’s MTFS. 

6.5.2 As highlighted in paragraph 4.6, there is a risk that the collection rate may not be 
achieved given the current economic climate. If this was to happen, additional funding 
may be made available from the government, otherwise the deficit would be funded 
from the Budget Strategy Reserve. 

6.6 Equality implications: 

6.6.1 The calculation of the tax base is as required by the relevant legislation detailed in 
paragraph 3.3. 

7. List of appendices referred to 

7.1 None 

8. Background papers used to compile this report 

8.1 None 

9. List of other relevant documents 

9.1 Council Tax Charges on Empty Properties Policy 

9.2 Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) 2021/22  

Page 9

http://eservices.solihull.gov.uk/mgInternet/documents/s71212/COUNCIL%20TAX%20REDUCTION%20SCHEME%20202021.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Council Tax Base 2021/22

